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Early trading posts were located on the Wolf River between the
villages of Langlade and Hollister; on Pine Lake at Hiles; on the shore
of Virgin Lake (6 miles east of Three Lakes); on the east shore of Catfish
Lake in the Chain of Lakes; and, at the old Indian village on Lake Lac Vieux
Desert. Here, the art of bartering was kept alive, as the traders obtained
furs from the Indians in exchange for trinkets, guns, ammunition and "fire
water" (whiskey). The furs were then transported, via the waterways, to
a post where they were sold and shipped to Europe.

As explorers, fur traders, and finally the settlers advanced into the
area, the Indians were driven from the land.

Misdealings between fur traders, settlers and the Indians caused bad
feelings, which culminated in the French and Indian War. 1In 1765, the war
ended, and French possessions east of the Mississippi River were ceded to
England.

Several years later, the colonists went to war with England. At the
end of the American Revolution, the territory northwest of the Ohio River
and east of the Mississippi River was given to the new United States by
Great Britain. However, England did not relinquish its hold immediately,
and it was not until the close of the War of 1812, that she ceased to
exercise some degree of control in this territory.

In 1787, the region bounded by Pennsylvania, the Ohio River, the
Mississippi River and the Great Lakes was organized as the Northwest
Territory. The claims of Massachusetts, Connecticut, and Virginia, as
based on their early charters, were returned to the United States between
1781 and 1786. The Wisconsin area was originally included in the organized
territory of Indiana in 1800. 1In 1809, it became a part of the Illinois
Territory, and in 1818, when Illinois became a State, the area was added
to the Michigan Territory.

No recounting of those early fur trading days would be complete with-
out mentioning Daniel Gagen. He was one of the notable pioneers of northern
Wisconsin. The Village of Gagen, in Oneida County, is named in his honor.

Dan Gagen was born in England in 1834. He came to America in 1851,
at the age of 17. Although he had obtained a good business education in
England, he spent his first year working in the copper mines of northern
Michigan. The country was wild in those days, with the Indians and
settlers tolerating each other because of their interdependence. The
Indians depended on the settlers for supplies, while the furs procured by
Indian hunters and trappers found a ready sale in civilized marts, pro-
viding the settlers with a source of income.

The fur trading profession appealed to Gagen, and he soon quit his job
in the mines, and built a log cabin trading post about 2 miles from the
present town of Eagle River.



Original from

UNIVERSITY OF MINMESOTA



from 6 to 8 squaws while they stayed with him and cut marsh hay for his
wild Indian ponies.

Around 1930, the Humane Society-made the Chief sell his wild ponies,
because he didn't have enough hay to feed them, nor a shelter to keep them
in during the harsh winter months. A man from Milwaukee, Wisconsin, came
in the spring of that year and offered to purchase the horses. After the
man captured the herd, he took them away to resell. He failed to pay Chief
Shopodock. When the Chief didn't get his money as promised, he began walk-
ing to Milwaukee to collect it in person. En route, the Chief stopped in
Marion, where he hoped to borrow some money until his return. When the
banker asked him for collateral, the Chief said, "What you mean collateral?"
The banker explained, and the Chief said, "I got 100 horses."

Chief Shopodock got the loan and continued on to Milwaukee, where he
collected his money. Upon his return, the Chief stopped at the Marion bank
to repay his loan. He had quite a lot of money left over, and the banker
suggested he leave some of it at the bank for safe keeping. The Chief
looked at the banker and said to him, "How many horses you got?" Needless
to say, the bank didn't get a "loan." The last time I saw Chief Shopodock
was at the Alvin Civilian Conservation Corps Camp in 1937. He ate a meal
in the mess hall with us, and was given a loaf of bread to take with him.

On January 28, 1940, Chief Shopodock walked to Kelsey's store on
State Highway 55 near the Pine River to buy supplies. After making his
purchases, Chief Shopodock was given a ride to the road leading to his
cabin by the Kelseys, and left off in a snowstorm. When the Chief did
not return the following week for supplies, the Kelseys went in search of
him. They found his frozen body February 6, some 30 feet from his cabin
door.

Chief Shopodock is buried in the Indian Cemetery at Wabeno, Wisconsin.
His heirs still own the 40 acres of land given the Chief by the Government.



Il. SETTLING THE AREA

EARLY TRAILS

Vital to any frontier establishment was a transportation system which
provided residents with relatively fast and efficient access to other
civilization strongholds. Although the waterways of the north were the
first travel routes, as people moved farther inland, they became less
accessible. A series of foot and horse trails soon developed between the
frontier villages.

The Ontonagon Mail Trail was a well trodden trail in the 1800's. The
road began where the City of Wausau is today, and ran through Jenny (now
Merrill), north through Pelican Rapids (now Rhinelander), along the west
side of Columbus Lake (an o0ld bachelor named Alex Columbus had built a log
shanty on the west side of the lake, hence the name), then north to Gagen
Hill. The road crossed the Eagle River near Morey's Resort. A mail route
was established along this trail, running between Wausau, Wisconsin, and
Ontonagon, Michigan. In those days, mail was back packed by men during
the milder months, and dog trains used in the winter.

Due to the regular use of the Ontonagon Mail Trail, resting stations
were set up. John Curran, formerly of Rhinelander, manned the Pelican
Rapids station. Dan Gagen, who was mentioned earlier, managed the next
station which was located about 30 miles away at Gagen Hill.

In 1854, A. B. Smith lead a crew of men who cut out a road from Wausau
to Jenny; the section from Stevens Point to Wausau was completed the year
before. 1In the fall of 1857, Helms Company of Stevens Point cut out a "tote"
road from Grandfather Falls to Eagle River. The Government appropriated
certain lands in 1860 for the construction of a road from Jenny to Lac Vieux
Desert, via Pelican Rapids and Eagle River. The road was turned over to
the County, which in turn, appropriated $3,000 in tax certificates for the
work. This completed route was known as the Wausau and North State Line
Road.

The Lake Superior Trail was used only during the winter months for
hauling mail and supplies and driving cattle to the copper mines in Michigan.
The trail started at Shawano, Wisconsin, and followed the west side of the
Wolf River north to the Wisconsin State line. Much of this section was
impassable during the summer because there were no bridges or water cross-
ings and many of the swamp areas were too wet to cross. The trail crossed
to the east side of the River at what is commonly known as the "Henry
Strauss Crossing." It then ran between Twin Lakes, crossing Pickeral Creek
and continuing on to Rockland, Michigan. The Lake Superior Trail was built
between 1861 and 1862.

When the timber companies penetrated Langlade County, it was essential
that the camps keep in touch with their supply bases, which were usually
located at Wausau, Appleton or Shawano, This opened the "tote" road era.
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Meanwhile, Congress extended the completion date from August 24, 1868,
to March 1, 1870. Crowell and his business partners, John W. Babcock and
B. N. Fletcher, completed 52.5 miles of the road by January 1, 1868. They
then entered a contract with Alanson J. Fox and Abijah Weston of Painted
Post, New York, giving them half interest in the uncompleted road. On
February 20, 1870, the commissioners reported to Governor Fairchild, that
Babcock, Fox and Weston had completed the unconstructed portion of the
road within the allotted time. Crowell and his heirs were granted
38,017.17 acres of land in Langlade County (then part of Oconto County).

More than any other wagon road, the "0ld Militare" opened up a vast
expanse of the Wolf River country to early traders, stimulating and in-
creasing the momentum of the great lumbering industry in eastern Langlade
County and the now Nicolet National Forest. While the Military Road was
originally intended for military defense of the Nation, woodsmen who worked
in the Wisconsin pineries a half century ago refute this; they insist the
Military Road was a land and timber conspiracy.

The old Military Road ran through a region rich in natural resources.
For example, it was not uncommon for a fur trader to purchase $10,000
worth of furs from the Indians in a single season, obtaining bear, wolf,
beaver, otter, fisher, marten, and mink pelts. Faced with a market hungry
for quality furs, the hunters and trappers stepped up their activities,
and within a few years, the fur industry was destroyed. Today, the fur
bearing animals have nearly disappeared, and efforts are being made to
restore the delicate balance of long ago.

Although the wildlife populations of Wisconsin's north woods had been
ravaged and the fur traders forced to move to other parts of the Country,
the forests were not yet safe from man. Towering pine trees stood at the
mercy of the saw.

TIMBER TALES

Following close behind the fur traders were the lumbermen. The timber
industry was established in northern Wisconsin over 100 years ago, with
the first pines being harvested on the upper waters of the Wolf and Wisconsin
Rivers.

The first timber cut on lands now making up the Nicolet National Forest
consisted of pine logs taken around 1835. A sawmill firm in Neenah took
the first pines from the northern part of Oconto County and floated them
down the Wolf River to the mill. 1In 1838, a water power mill was built at
Peshtigo in Marinette County. Pine logs cut from the northern part of
Oconto County were floated down the Peshtigo River to this mill. Several
sawmills were built at Green Bay and Oconto between 1840 and 1860. Pine
logs were driven down the waterways, from what is today the Nicolet National
Forest's Lakewood District, to supply these mills.

In 1842, the first raft of pine logs from Forest County was floated
down the Rat River. By the mid-1840's, four mills were in operation in
Neenah. Oshkosh had half a dozen sawmills by 1850.
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Following the decline of the pine lumbering industry, two other forest
industries sprang up, pushing man farther into the northern forests. The
hardwood-hemlock lumber and the wood pulp and paper industries encouraged
new sawmill towns, which were transient in character. Hardwood logs could
not be driven downstream because they didn't float well and the cost of
rail transportation gradually became too high; therefore, the sawmills had
to follow the harvesters. Early pulp and paper mills were built upriver
at water power sites. The Fox, Menominee, Oconto, Wisconsin and Chippewa
Rivers furnished power for many of these early pulp and paper mills.

After the timber was cut, fires were set to the slash to eliminate
the threat of uncontrolled forest fires. Many of the lands were burned
repeatedly, permitting the introduction of such pioneer species as aspen,
white birch and jack pine. Aspen was considered a weed tree until the
1930's, when research developed methods for making paper from hardwoods.
Today, in the Lake States, more paper is made from aspen than any other
species.

History is made, not so much by events, as by people. The following
is a list of some of those people who worked as timber cruisers during
the heyday of northern Wisconsin's timber industry:

NAME HOME TOWN
John Emmett Nelligan Oconto
James (Jimmy) George Shawano

J. L. Whitehouse Shawano
Charles Bacon Crandon
Robert Delaney Antigo
Ernest Norm (also local storekeeper) Bryant
George Jackson Pickeral
Fred Kalkofen Antigo
Charles Larselere Lily

W. J. Zahl Langlade County
Dave Edick Antigo
Charles Ainsworth Pearson
Charles Worden Menasha
Earl Weed Menasha

B. F. Dorr (also surveyor) Langlade County
E. S. Brooks (also surveyor) Kempster
Nate Bruce Parish

S. A. Taylor -

W. C. Webley Wausau
Chester Bennett Green Bay
Abner Rollo, Sr. Antigo
Reuben Vaughen -

Peter O'Connor Menasha

Dan Graham Eagle River
James Hafner Wausau

Phil Ryan
A. J. Miltmore

Summit Lake
Town of Vilas

11
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Cassius Smith
Gates Saxton
George Schultz
Jess Calwell
Malcolm Hutchinson
Oso Campbell
Joe Fermanich
George Stout
M. I. McEachin
George Baldwin
Bryon Kent
George Glenn
John Gayheart
John Hammes
Pat Sullivan

Oconto
Malcolm
Antigo
Mattoon
Rhinelander
Rhinelander
Appleton
Oconto
Crandon
Wabeno
Padus

Three Lakes

John Emmett Nelligan was one of the earliest cruisers in the area.
He worked for many different logging companies and later became a logger
himself. His logging camps were along the Oconto, Waupee, Wolf, and Pine

Rivers. Nelligan Lake is named after him.

Many of the early employees on the Nicolet National Forest knew John
Hammes and Byron Kent as two of the old wood cruisers. I examined lands
for purchase on the Nicolet in the winters of 1933 and 1934 with them.

There are many others who were early timber cruisers - too many, in
fact, to list. These 0ld timers were sometimes called timber "lookers"

and usually worked with a compassman.

Plots were randomly selected, and

the number of trees per species were then tallied. The number of logs per

tree was estimated next.

The cruiser then figured out how many logs would

make a thousand board feet, and arrive at the final estimate.

The following poem appeared in the Forest Republican of Crandon,
Wisconsin, in 1965. It reflects much of the jargon, lifestyle and

attitudes of the timbering years.

Timber! . . . . . Ho!

TIMBER
by

Schmidt

Oh come all you buck-ohs and lend me an ear

As we turn back the pages for many a year.

To the days when the jacks were cutting tall timber.
It's part of the past, but the memory's linger.

To sing of the cross—-cut, the whang of the axe,

The sweat of the brow and the ache in the back.

Then hitch Dan and Mag get-ee-up, get, ee-awmp.

The sun isn't up, but it's light in the swamp.

It's up in the morning to rise and to shine,

And start down the tote road that leads to the pine.
Now here comes a jack we remember as Hank;

With an old team of nags and a full water tank.
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Mixed with many a yarn spun from the deacon's bench.
You work and you work, that's all that you do.

'Til spring break-up comes, and you know that you're through.
They figger your time, and you draw up your pay

At ten cents an hour; ten hours a day.

Then you pack up your turkey and head into town.
Every jack in the country side's sure to be found.
Jack Holland, Jack Toole, and Jack the Sinard.

And dozens of others lined up at the bars.

There's Black Joe and Red Jim, and Dick the Saville.
And Big Hans and Shorty, and the one-armed Bill.
There's Irishers, Bo-hunks and there are the Swedes,

And a salt shaker sprinkling of all other breeds.
They're rugged and tough and rough as a cob.

And they'll fight one another, or all in a mob.

In the world of lumberjacks, women were few.

There was trapper Nora, whom likely you knew;

As Swamp Angel or Spirit of Two Forty Seven.

And Polly, whose cooking, full attention was given.
The jacks in the region of Porcupine Hill,

Who hankered for something that came from a still.

And also the sight of a woman again,

Found whiskey and Marge at the old Old Pine Tree Inn.
There were loggers who hired the crews.

The list is too long to name but a few.

The big ones like Connors, Brown Bros., and Hiles
Whose holdings spread out over the miles.

And small ones like Rindal, Garlock and Hess, Palmer and Tyler
and Johnny the Jess.

And down through the years on the end of the list,

A little Swede jobber, called Maggie the Quist.

The life of the lumberjack wasn't a joke.

He'd liquor and rampage until he was broke.

And we can't recollect if ever we knew,

How in the devil he'd summer it through.

But along in the fall when things came alive

It was back to the camps, like bees to a hive!

Back to the woods he'd head like a bee,

Though the life was a hard one his spirit was free.
One thing we think we can state as a fact,

There were many exploited the low lumberjack.

We're not here to judge - was it right - was it wrong?
Just to tell you their story - that's all of the song.
In the woods of the north, we have lumberjacks yet.

A second growth crop of a different set.

The original timber has passed through the landing;
Except gnarled rampikes; that still may be standing.
Jack, as we know him, has taken his fall.

And has faded away with the echoing call

Tim - ber!
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Chicago & Northwestern Railroad track was laid north into the area
in 1898. Later, State Highway 32 was built into the area, forcing the
citizens to gradually relocate to the town's present location. The
Nicolet National Forest's Lakewood Ranger District is headquartered here.

WABENO

The early history of Wabeno centers around the development of three
lumber companies -- Menominee Bay Shore Lumber Company, A. E. Rusch Company
and the Jones Lumber Company.

In the closing years of the 1800's, the Chicago & Northwestern Rail-
road pushed north into the area, which had already been exploited by the
pine lumbering interests. Sawmills were soon built along the tracks, and
a town sprang up around them. Wood fueled the community's economy. To-
gether, the Menominee Bay Shore, A. E. Rusch, and Jones companies produced
more than 35 million feet of lumber a year.

All but the Menominee Bay Shore mill shut down between 1920 and 1930.
In 1936, it, too, was forced to close its door, being faced with hundreds
of slashed and burned acres. This company is considered one of the most
destructive ever to have operated in northern Wisconsin, its slash and
burn policy leaving much of the land devastated. Company officials had
hoped to sell these cutover and burned lands to prospective farmers, but
the market never developed.

On June 2, 1880, a tornado swept across northern Wisconsin from Antigo
to Lake Superior, causing timber to blow down in a strip that measured one-
half to one mile wide. This area was called "Waubeno," or "The Coming of
the Winds" by the Indians. The town took its name from this event.

LAONA

The turn of the Century marked the founding of Laona -~ just 20 years
prior to logging's heyday. Around 1876, the pine loggers came into the
area and cleared off the pine stands which were scattered throughout the
hardwoods. Not until the railroad came to Laona in 1900, however, did the
great logging operations in the hardwoods begin. Exploratory expeditions
into this area by pine loggers and a few other individuals took place be-
tween 1870 and 1890. The area was not very accessible, and few men ventured
this far from the last outposts. Eventually, logging expeditions moved
into the area, withs pine being hauled on sleighs to Roberts Lake and floated
down the Wolf River, or put in the Peshtigo River below Taylor Falls.

During the last decade of the 19th Century, W. D. Connor hiked, with
his cruisers, examining the fine stands of hardwood timber which he later
purchased. Also, during this period the Chicago Northwestern Railroad was
moving northward into the Laona area, a project which benefited from re-
ceiving huge Federal land grants. The initial logging of the area occurred
between 1900 and 1910. Oxen were used to skid the logs, while the hauling
was done with sleighs and horses on iced roads. In later years, the "snow



Original from

UNIVERSITY OF MINMESOTA



Original from

UNIVERSITY OF MINMESOTA



Original from

UNIVERSITY OF MINMESOTA



Original from

UNIVERSITY OF MINMESOTA



Original from

UNIVERSITY OF MINMESOTA



Original from

UNIVERSITY OF MINMESOTA



William A. Phelps, company general manager, died in 1912. His son,
Charles A. Phelps assumed the general manager's duties, but with little
success. In May 1915, C. M. Christenson became manager of the Hackley,
Phelps, Bonnell Company. Transportation and equipment advancements were
implemented, and in September 1928, Christenson bought out the company's
assets.

The Phelps sawmill operated until 1957, when the cost of manual labor
made it financially obsolete.

The town experienced a spurt of growth between 1908 and 1912, when
the Finnish moved to the area and began farming. In clearing the land,
the Finns produced many cords of chemical wood for the plant. Finns left
their mark in the area, in the form of many fine barns and saunas, which
attest to their artistic abilities and wood craftsmanship.

In reality, it has been recreation, not timber, that has been the
economic backbone of Phelps. The Twin Lake Hunting and Fishing Club was
formed in the 1880's, and later became the Lakota Resort on North Twin Lake.
The Louis Thomas Trading Post, established in the 1870's, has since become
a recreation area. The Eagle River Rod and Gun Club originated in 1890,
on Big Sand Lake, and today is the Big Sand Lake Club. The local Hazen's
Resort on Long Lake opened for business in 1900. Sylvester Caskey also
operated a resort during the early 1900's.

After C. M. Christenson's death, his son, Phil, took over the manage-
ment of the property and land holdings. He has since developed the Smokey
Lake Game Preserve, and today he owns and manages the Smokey Lake Realty
Company in Phelps.

Today, the Town of Phelps is a lovely, small community located in the
Nicolet National Forest on the northeast end of North Twin Lake. Some small
industries still exist in the area, such as Sylvan Products, and the Four
Seasons, a pre-cut summer home construction company. However, Phelps is
still primarily a northern woods tourist center.

CAVOUR

The Forest County community of Cavour has a citizenry today of about
60, compared to its early population of about 600. Lumbering activities
put the boom in town business in those days; in fact, one company took
out 2 trainloads of logs each day, with the trains being made up of 40 or
50 cars.

The young town of Cavour boasted a general store, sawmill, hotel and
saloon, all owned by Albert Hess. Business was brisk. For example, during
one Sunday morning in 1917, Hess took in $600 across the bar in the hotel.
That same year, the general store did $90,000 worth of business. Hess House
was always crowded in those days, sometimes hosting as many as 100 people.
Built in 1914, Hess House was in business for 23 years, until Cavour's
population and popularity began to wane. Today, many of these early business
structures stand empty.
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As the sawmill operation expanded, the need for additional laborers
was met by an influx of part-time farmers, lumberjacks and unemployed city
dwellers. During 1919, a log house settlement of Kentuckians, from the

foothills of Oklahoma and Kentucky, sprang up about four miles north of town.

In late 1928, the town's brightness began to dim, with the exhaustion
of the timber supply. The mill owners tried desperately to negotiate for
more timber holdings, but to no avail. The mill whistle sounded its last
mournful blast in the fall of 1928. For many, it was the end of what had
been a very profitable and comfortable life.

Many individuals left their mark on the Wisconsin northwoods. Here
are a few Tipler citizens whose way of life left some lasting impressions:

A. J. Tipler - founder of the town and principal employer

William Grossman - Tipler's business partner

Bob Mazlein - mill superintendent

Carl Benninghaus - lumber yard foreman

Chris Peterson - railroad engineer

George "Peggy" Suring - part-time engineer on Tipler's railway and

fireman

Merle Quimby - succeeded Mazlein as mill superintendent and was
later appointed postmaster. Quimby also operated
Dickson's store until the fire.

Adam Strom - first and only Tipler depot agent

Albert Schroder - barn boss

Charley O'Connor - company blacksmith and machinist

Lucille Kimball - school teacher

Otto Daumitz - town chairman in the early 1930's

Henry Henning - influential farmer

Herman LaBine - pioneer, farmer and woodsman

Lewis Smith - farmer and logger

Archie Shannon - local citizen

As evidenced by much of northern Wisconsin's frontier town history,
lumber companies were often more than just places where people made a
living. Rather, these companies gave life to the town, and as often, were
the cause of its death.

At one time, many logging firms operated within the boundaries of
today's Nicolet, National Forest, including:

Name of Company or Owner Headquarters
Thunder Lake Lumber Company Rhinelander
Holt Lumber Company Oconto
Connor Lumber Company Laona
Goodman Lumber Company Goodman
Christensen Lumber Company Phelps
Menominee Bay Shore Company Soperton
Hiles Lumber Company Hiles
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From the Thunder Lake Store, the company tracks were extended northeast
around Lake Julia, east across the Pine River to within a few hundred feet
of State Highway 55, north to the Butternut and Franklin Lake areas, and
finally into the Brule Springs, Kentuck Lake and Spectacle Lake areas. This
was hilly, rough country, requiring a lot of cut and fill before the tracks
could be sloped low enough to permit travel by the railroad engines. A lima
engine (geared drive wheels) was used to bring loaded log cars off the spur
tracks to the main line.

The company completed most of the log cutting by 1940, with some
scattered cutting through 1941. Following this, the track rails were
pulled up, a job which was completed by mid-summer 1941. However, the
Boom Lake mill near Rhinelander operated until 1943 on a stock of logs
and a minimal amount of logs which were purchased.

The store at Virgin Lake was sold, and is still in operation
as a grocery store. Mr. Mylrea's private railrocad car, which was left
sitting near the store was used for years as living quarters by Jack Bell,
a former camp boss for the company, and his wife. The car and Railroad
Engine No. 5 were later moved to the logging museum in Rhinelander, where
they can still be seen.

THE LAND ABLAZE

Drought conditions stretched over many months, combined with hundreds
of acres of slash that were left following the vast timber harvesting
activities, turned Wisconsin's north woods into an explosive tinder box.
Beginning in the late 1800's and continuing for more than half a century,
forest fires were "Public Enemy #1."

One of the most devastating fires ever recorded in history was the
Peshtigo Fire.

Peshtigo, Wisconsin, was a boom town during the logging era. There
were numerous logging camps in operation nearby, and every spring large
log drives jammed the Peshtigo River as the winter log cut was taken to
market. In the northeastern corner of Wisconsin, the spring and summer of
1871 were dry and hot, with below normal amounts of precipitation.

Little or no concern for fire prevention, along with a prevailing
attitude that there was more than enough forest lands to meet the Nation's
needs, resulted in numerous wild fires being allowed to burn.

On Sunday, October 8, 1871, the area surrounding Peshtigo was hot, dry
and windy. The air was filled with smoke from wild fires burning in nearby
slashings and woodlands. Otherwise, life was routine =-- town residents
went to church, while the lumberjacks nursed their hangovers from Saturday
night. As nightfall approached, many of the town's people sat on their
porches and watched the sun set in a red sky filled with smoke and bits
of ash. As the evening wore on, groups of men were called out to try and
stop a fire that was approaching the village timits. Their attempts were
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I1l. NICOLET NATIONAL FOREST BEGINNINGS

Federal forestry had its beginning 100 years after the signing of
the Declaration of Independence, when Congress authorized the appointment
of a special forestry agent in 1876. 1In 1898, Gifford Pinchot assumed the
top position of what was then the Forestry Division in the Department of
Agriculture. Finally, in 1905, Congress established a national forest
conservation and management policy, along with the basic structure of today's
Forest Service. When the Forest Service took charge of the forest reserves,
they numbered 60 and covered 56 million acres of federally owned land. The
forest reserves became National Forests in 1907. The Forest Service, under
the leadership of Chief Forester Pinchot, was made responsible for managing
the National Forests, ". . . for the greatest good of the largest number of
people in the long run."

In Wisconsin, much of the northern timber stands had been clearcut by
the early 1900's. The lumber companies were followed by fire, and the flames
licked the unprotected earth until it lay black and ashen. Between 1918 and
1925, numerous land speculation companies sprang into existence. Having
purchased the abandoned lands at very low prices, the companies then printed
maps and pamphlets which promised "satisfaction guaranteed", good soil,
healthful climate, good market facilities, plentiful lakes and streams, and
a location where droughts were unknown. Much of this, of course, was not
true.

However, many families were lured into buying much of the land. Those
who tried farming soon found the land to be generally unproductive, trans-
portation poor and the area with very limited access to markets. Many were
forced to sell out or abandon their lands because they could not vay the
taxes.

It was from these scraps of land -- cut-over, scarred by fire, worked
to the point of infertility -- that the Nicolet National Forest began to take
shape. Both the State of Wisconsin and the Federal Government realized that
something had to be done if these lands were to receive the protection and
reforestation necessary to return them to their original productiveness.

On December 12, 1928, the National Forest Reservation Commission
approved the Oneida Purchase Unit, consisting of 151,680 acres in Oneida,
Forest and Vilas counties. Much of this land was purchased under the
authority of the Weeks Law of 1911, which enabled the Government to purchase
those lands necessary for the protection of the flow of navigable streams.
The first lands in the newly established Oneida Purchase Unit were bought
from the Thunder Lake Lumber Company.

A Forest Service office was set up in Park Falls in 192¢. S. D.
Anderson headed that office, overseeing the management of the unit along
with the acquisition of new lands.
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recreation areas, ranger stations, the Trees for Tomorrow training center
and countless timber plantations exist because of the corpsmen's hard work.

At the peak of the CCC program, the Nicolet Forest had 22 camps, with
about 200 enrollees per camp. The Army was responsible for the enrollees'
housing, clothing, feeding, and medical care. The Forest Service, in turn,
was in charge of the work program and furnishing supervision, materials
and the necessary equipment for carrying out the projects. The Forest
Service's camp organization consisted of a camp superintendent, three to
six foresters, three to four construction foremen and two to three sub-
foremen. The Army also had an educational advisor on their staff who set
up evening classes. Forest Service personnel would teach classes several
evenings a week.

After the CCC program had been in operation for awhile, Congress
authorized the establishment of camps for World War I veterans. Phelps
Camp on the Nicolet Forest was a veteran's camp.

CCC CZAMPS ON THE NICOLET NATIONAL FOREST

CAMP NAME NUMBER EQE&TION DISTRICT

Virgin Lake F-1 S$31,T39N,R12E Argonne

Nine Mile F-2 S$35,T40N,R11E Phelps

Pine River F-8 S30,T39N,R13E Argonne

Scott Lake F-9 Co. 645 S22,T38N,R12E Argonne
Mountain F-19 S4,T31N,R16E Oconto-Lakewood
Blackwell F-34 S9,T35N,R15E Peshtigo

Cavour F-39 S15,T36N,R15E Peshtigo
Rainbow F-40 S10,TA0ON,R16E Florence

Phelps F-26 Co. 1680 527,T42N,R11E Phelps

Alvin F-27 S3,T40N,R13E Phelps

Long Lake F-29 S31,T39N,R15E Florence

Boot Lake F-30 $8,T32N,R15E Oconto-Lakewood
Trump Lake F-28 $16,T34N,R16E Oconto-Lakewood
Double Bend F-41 S32,T38N,R15E Argonne

Himley Lake F-45 S9,T34N, R14E Peshtigo

Newald F-102 526,T38N,R15E Florence
Section Eleven F- S11,T39N,R12E Argonne

Lily Pad F- S22,T40N,R14E Phelps

Wolf River F- $28,T31N,R15E Oconto-Lakewood
Bear Paw F- $22,T31N,R17E Oconto-Lakewood
Dream F- S$34,T40N,R15E Florence
Lakewood F- $36,T33N,R16E Oconto-Lakewood
Thunder River F- S16,T33N,R17E Oconto-Lakewood

Whenever the CCC days on the Nicolet National Forest are being dis-

cussed, it leads to the telling of Roy Nettleton's fate.

Roy Nettleton came to work on the Nicolet Forest in 1933, as a junior

forester at the Scott Lake CCC Camp. He worked his way up the ladder, and

was appointed camp superintendent.
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clearing the right-of-way for State Highway 70. 1In addition, camp residents
raised all their own vegetables, along with some hogs.

Approximately 250 men lived at Camp Imogene. Camp costs averaged 32
cents per man per day. The camp closed in July 1937, when the monies ran
out.

The Trees for Tomorrow Environmental Center near the town of Eagle River
was also constructed during the Civilian Conservation Corps era. The Center
was originally used as a training base for forest managers working in the
Eastern Region of the Forest Service.

In 1942, the Center was closed as a training facility. Four years
later, the property was placed under a special use permit to Trees for

Tomorrow, Inc. The corporation represents a unique example of cooperation
between Federal and State Government and private industry. During World
War II, a team of resource managers worked out of the Trees for Tomorrow
Center advising small landowners on proper resource management and tree
growing procedures, as well as conducting special training for Federal and
State land managers. Eventually, a center program evolved reflecting a wide
range of outdoor and natural resource subjects.

Today, the Trees for Tomorrow Center operates year round, offering
seminars and programs on such subjects as winter ecology, outdoor sports,
safety, environmental education training, orienteering and survival skills.

The Nicolet National Forest is used extensively for field tours by
Center groups. For many who visit the Trees for Tomorrow Center, it is
an introduction to the world of natural resource management.
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The first land and timber survey on the Nicolet Forest was initiated
in 1937. The survey included timber and soil types, timber growth, fire
hazard conditions, areas requiring planting and needed timber species.

Also estimated, were timber stand improvement and insect and disease
control needs. The first aerial photos of the Nicolet National Forest were
made in 1938, for inventory purposes. Once the photos were interpreted,
ground points were checked, plots marked for accuracy, timber yields esti-
mated, acreage of timber types determined and a final summary drawn up.
Also considered in these early planning efforts were recreation demands,
wildlife needs, and watershed protection projects. This information, along
with management suggestions, made up the first real comprehensive timber
management plan for the Nicolet Forest.

The next timber management plan was prepared for the period of 1953-
1963, and was much improved. Compartments were designated on each Forest
district, and a schedule for compartment examinations was set up. The plan
also gave consideration to timber types, size classes, growth, planting
needs, recreation possibilities, transportation, resident population, forest
protection, land surveys and forest industries.

A new timber management plan was developed to cover the years 1964-1975.
In addition to the areas given consideration by earlier planning efforts,
this document included road and waterfront zones, wild and scenic areas and
necessary wildlife openings.

Currently, Nicolet National Forest managers are in the second phase of
a 3 part regional planning scheme. A team of individuals, representing a
multiple of land management professions, has been appointed and charged with
the responsibility of putting together a long-range Forest Plan. This plan
will contain specific land management direction for the Forest's overall
natural resource base, and will reflect Service-wide policies and Regional
direction as outlined in the Lake States Area Guide. The third and final
phase of the land use planning process is the development of plans for indi-
vidual Forest units. A unit is a section on the Forest which has a unique
set of resources or which can fulfill a specific need.

Although early Nicolet National Forest planning efforts emphasized
timber, today's plans give equal recognition to all of the Forest's resource
systems. The Forest and Rangeland Renewable Resource Planning Act of 1974
recognizes six specific resource systems: outdoor recreation and wilderness;
wildlife and fish habitat; range; timber; land and water; and, human and
community development. This Act calls on the Forest Service to make an
assessment of all of the Nation's forest, range and related lands, public
and privately owned. The first assessment was made in 1974, and is to be
updated in 1979, and again every 10 years. Based on the findings of the
assessment, the Forest Service is then responsible for developing a long-
range management program for the National Forest System, Research and State
and Private activities. These programs cover a 45-year period and are
updated every 5 years. In 1976, President Gerald R. Ford signed into law
the National Forest Management Act. This Act gave new policy direction to
the Forest Sérvice. When signing the bill, President Ford spoke of the
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Today, the Hugo Sauer Nursery site is used in part by the Nicolet
National Forest, the Forest Service's Lake States Research Experiment Station
and the State of Wisconsin.

Wisconsin uses several of the buildings for a tree distribution center,
a district warehouse and storage areas; the Nicolet Forest has adopted some
of the area for daily Forest uses; and, the Lake States Research Experiment
Station has headquartered the Institute of Forest Genetics here. The
Institute has greenhouses, laboratories and offices. Much of the area is
used for field tests under the tree improvement program.

WATER AND LAND

Water is another of the five renewable resources listed under the
Multiple Use-Sustained Yield Act, and it is an element of the land and water
resource system under RPA. The Eastern Continental Divide is located on
the Nicolet National Forest. Many tributaries leading into the Mississippi
River, and Lake Michigan make the area an important watershed. In addition,
the 235 miles of streams, 607 miles of rivers and 34,613 acres of lakes are
vital to the Forest's recreational resource.

A systematic and regular water monitoring system helps guarantee that
all land management activities are executed in such a way as to prevent
damage of the water resource.

As for the land resource, the Nicolet Forest boundaries encompass a
gross area of more than 973,000 acres, of which approximately 652,000 are
federally owned. Aside from the general Forest activities which occur
here, more than 300 special use permits have been issued to businesses,
communities and individuals.

WILDLIFE

In recent years, the wildlife community has become of great concern
to man. Gradually, man has come to realize that the inability of a wildlife
species to adapt and cope with the changing world, might, in fact, be
signalling his own demise. Thus, there is a sincere effort to help all
wildlife gain a stronger hold on 1life.

A successful wildlife management program on the 1.5 million acres of
National Forest land in Wisconsin depends on cooperation between the Forest
Service and the State, because while the Forest Service is responsible for
habitat management, the State is in charge of population controls. The
Sikes Act of 1973 encourages greater Federal-State cooperation in the area
of wildlife habitat management by guaranteeing Federal funding for coopera-
tive programs.

A cooperative wildlife habitat management program was agreed on between
the State of Wisconsin and the Forest Service in the Fall of 1976. The
overall objective of the 5 year program is, "to improve the ecological
diversity of the forest environment so as to meet the habitat needs of all
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deputy director of the education and corpsman supervisor program; and,
William Wolff, Jr., administrative officer. Eventually, the staff grew to
42 people.

The early program at the Blackwell Center revolved around helping en-
rollees finish their high school education, and repairing and reestablishing
the Forest's natural resources. Reforestation, timber stand improvement,
rehabilitation of spring ponds, recreation area construction and repair, fire
prevention and community assistance projects were the major activities handled
by the corpsmen. The program began changing in 1968, and vocational training
in the building and construction trades was emphasized. The new program also
benefits the Nicolet Forest, and has resulted in construction of new recrea-
tion areas and administrative site improvements.

Today, Blackwell has seven skill training programs, conducted by Forest
Service employees and contractors, including four construction trade unions.
Included in the Center's training roster are carpentry, heavy equipment
operation, painting, welding, masonry, cooking and building maintenance. The
Center is equipped to handle approximately 200 resident corpsmen, and has a
55-member staff. Of the young men who completed a training program and left
the Center between July 1, 1974, and June 30, 1975, 70 percent were placed
in jobs; 25 percent went on to further their education; and, 5 percent
entered the military.

The Center Directors have played a major role in helping the Nicolet
National Forest's Job Corps Program become a success. Center Directors
include:

1965-1966 Roger Johnson
1966-1967 John Pager
1967-1969 Thomas Fulk
1969-1970 Edmund Vandermillen
1970-1973 William Erickson
1973- Harold Godlevske

On August 13, 1970, a "cousin" of the Civilian Conservation Corps
was born when President Richard Nixon signed Public Law 91-378. This Act
established a 3 year pilot summer employment program for young people,
ages 15 through 18. The main objective of the Youth Conservation Corps
(YCC) was to gainfully employ young people in a conservation, work-education
program on public lands and waters which were administered by the Depart-
ments of Agriculture and Interior. It was hoped that the YCC would "“create
an opportunity for understanding and appreciation of the Nation's natural
environment and heritage . . . and further the development and maintenance
of the natural resources of the United States by the youth, upon whom will
fall the ultimate responsibility for maintaining and managing these resources
for the American people."

The YCC Program proved so successful, that Congress expanded it and
made it a permanent national endeavor on September 3, 1974. The new
legislation authorized $60 million annually for the Youth Conservation Corps.
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workmanship exhibited.

The Youth Conservation Corps is a successful and well-received man-
power program.

The enthusiasm and energy put forth by YCC campers is
surpassed only by the high volume of work accomplished and top quality

Conservation Corps Program follows.

YEAR
1971
1972
1973
1974

1975

*One Camper For One Week

*NO.
CAMPERS/WEEK NO. SESSIONS

280 1 8-week
280 2 4-week
280 1l ¢S-week
330 1l 6-week
460 1l 6-week

1 4-week

SEX

Male

Male

Co-ed

Co-ed

Co-ed

A synopsis of the Nicolet National Forest's Youth

VALUE OF
WORK ACCOMPLISHED

$82,336
$31,950
$44,849
$42,700

$77,677

59




60

VL. IN CLOSING

Management of the Nicolet National Forest grows more complex and more
challenging for the public land manager every day. It is not a one person
or one staff job. Rather, everyone must feel responsible for the Nation's
natural resources and work to ensure proper management and future supplies
of all of them -- wood, water, wildlife, forage, recreation and, of course,
people.

The following Environmental Pledge was written by me, Kennell Elliott
(Nicolet History author), and has been adopted for use by the U.S. Forest
Service and the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources. Won't you make
it your pledge, too?

I pledge to do the following:

prevent air pollution;

not pollute water;

do all I can to reduce solid wastes;
not create excessive noise.

I will not litter or be destructive to the landscape;
I will work to keep the scenic beauty of our country;

I will consider the effects of my actions on other people,
wildlife, aesthetics, waters, air, land and the total
environment.



VIl. STATISTICS

This section contains dates, names, facts and figures which are
important and basic to any written history of the Nicolet National Forest.

The subjects covered and their order is as follows:

Nicolet National Forest Supervisors

District Rangers -- Three Lakes (Argonne)
Eagle River (Phelps)

Laona (Peshtigo)
Lakewood (Oconto)

Florence

Field Personnel Register -- March 1937

Resource Statistics -- Net Acreage

25% Fund Returns

S. Duval Anderson
Raymond U. Harmon
Paul A. Wohlen
Axel G. Lindh
Warren T. Murphy
Galen W. Pike
Donald P. Ball
Dan E. Bulfer
Edward N. Lee

Kenneth P. Butterfield
Phillip L. Archibald

John W. Chaffin
Thomas A. Fulk

Fires

Recreational visits

Timber

1928
1932
1934
1936
1938
1940
1945
1951
1955
1957
1965
1968
1972

1932
1934
1936
1938
1940
1945
1951
1955
1957
1965
1968
1972

NICOLET NATIONAL FOREST SUPERVISORS

THREE LAKES (ARGONNE) RANGER DISTRICT RANGERS

Ray Iverson

Rene La Rocque
Louis Tausch, Jr.
Richard Smith
Robert Steideman
Ed Bober

Phil Daughtery
Jack Wolter
Larry Henson
Richard Brewster
Edward Johnson

1929
1934
1939
1944
1954
1955
1959
1962
1965
1966
1972

1934
1939
1944
1954
1955
1959
1962
1965
1966
1972
1975
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EAGLE RIVER (PHELPS) RANGER DISTRICT RANGERS

Walter Nicewander 1936 - 1945
James Jay 1945 - 1947
George Frisbie 1947 - 1949
Donald Smith 1949 - 1952
Warren Livens 1952 - 1955
Anthony Quinkert 1955 - 1962
Leon Kridelbaugh 1962 - 1964
Gary Keppen 1964 - 1976
Carl Stein 1976 -

LAONA (PESHTIGO) RANGER DISTRICT RANGERS

V. C. Sheffield 1934 - 1935

W. W. Intermill 1935 - 1942 & 1947
Horace O. Nixon 1943 - 1944

Louis Tausch, Jr. 1945 - 1946

Eliot W. Zimmerman 1948 - 1954

Ed Crook 1955 - 1957

David Seaberg 1958 - 1967

Lowell Patterson 1967 - 1974

Dale B. Staege 1974 -

LAKEWOOD (OCONTO) RANGER DISTRICT RANGERS

Rene La Rocque 1933 - 1934
Kenneth Pomeroy 1934 - 1937
Paul Kohlmire 1937 - 1944
Ferris Green 1944 - 1953
Virgil Stephens 1953 - 1956
Rudy Hedland 1956 - 1958
Clifford Crosby 1958 - 1965
Harry Mahoney 1965 - 1967
Arden Mikich 1967 - 1973
Evans Lutz 1973 - 1976

FLORENCE RANGER DISTRICT RANGERS

Louis Tausch, Jr. 1936 - 1939
Austin Zapp (Acting) 1939

Rene La Rocque 1939 - 1941
James W. Jay 1941 - 1943
Ed Iverson 1943 - 1944
F. Fehlberg 1944 - 1945
J. Mason (Acting) 1945 - 1946
Horace O. Nixon 1946 - 1951
E. F. Biebesheimer 1951 - 1956
R. A. White 1956 - 1957
Albert J. Anderson 1957 - 1967

Donald P. Footer 1967 -



NICOLET NATIONAL FOREST
FIELD PERSONNEL REGISTER - MARCH 1937

Argonne District - Ranger Station

Rene La Rocque - Ranger

Paul N. Seastrom - ECW Assistant
Edward R. Stoltz - Junior Clerk
Ervin L. Sickler - Mechanic

Leroy G. Cunningham - Warehouseman

Double Bend Camp, F-41

Morris Hancock, Junior Forester - Superintendent
Ragner Romnes, Junior Forester

Horace O. Nixon, Junior Forester

William E. Dent - Assistant to Technician

Edmund E. Kluck - Jr. Foreman C&M

Phillip H. Spies - Jr. Foreman C&M

Albert E. Saltzberry - Mechanic

Scott Lake Camp, F-9

Lincoln A. Mueller, Junior Forester - Superintendent
Harry J. Blitstein, Junior Forester
Frank N. Fixmer, Junior Forester
Oscar G. Peterson - Foreman C&M
Carl Boettger - Jr. Foreman C&M
Lewis R. Calhoun - Jr. Foreman C&M
Ernest J. Allen - Squad Foreman
George F. Colburn - Squad Foreman
William H. Moyer - Carpenter
William E. Neu - Mechanic

Maskiel B. Swett - Mechanic

Florence District - Ranger Station

Louis Tausch, Jr. - Ranger

Walter E. Poole, Junior Forester - ECW Assistant
Raymond A. Tetzlaff - Junior Clerk

John Mason - Warehouseman

Long Lake Camp, F-29

Lloyd A. Rickel, Jr., Junior Forester - Superintendent
Clarence J. Lovin, Junior Forester

Warren H. Livens, Junior Forester

Tom Kleve - Junior Foreman

Ronald M. Elvidge - Squad Foreman
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Newald Camp, F-102

Sumner W. Farnham - Chief Foreman, Superintendent
Ralph L. Neafus, Junior Forester

Everett A. Shipek, Junior Forester

Benjamin P. Moss, Junior Forester

Martin Hawrylow - Assistant to Technician

Joseph C. Steinfest -~ Jr. Foreman

Rainbow Camp, F-40

Raymond E. Stevens - Principal Foreman, Superintendent
Stewart Morey, Junior Forester

John J. Zaylskie, Junior Forester

Harry Bartz - Foreman

Adam Korbas - Foreman

Frederick V. Evert - Jr. Foreman

Edward Grissom - Squad Foreman

Frank Kelm - Assistant to Technician

John H. Denn ~ Machine Operator

Earl J. Hoar - Mechanic

Oconto District - Ranger Station

Kenneth Pomeroy - Ranger

Austin C. Zapp, Junior Forester

Claude D. Marks - Junior Stenographer
Charles J. Vogt, Warehouseman

Frank A. Kutil, Jr. - Supervising Mechanic

Boot Lake Camp, F-30

John C. Neumoier - Chief Foreman, Superintendent
Walter L. Saffran - Junior Foreman

James W. Stoddard - Junior Foreman

Jack S. Trust, Junior Forester

Carl J. Ahlgrim - Squad Foreman

Arthur E. Karnopp - Mechanic

Fred W. Vonau - Machine Operator

Karl Wild - Assistant to Technician

Mountain Camp, F-19

Calvin E. Rusch - Chief Foreman, Superintendent
William H. Meyer, Junior Forester

Royal M. Nettleton, Junior Forester

Edward A. Anderson - Assistant to Technician

Fred C. Dunlap - Junior Foreman

Albert J. Pung - Skilled Worker, Model Construction
Benjamin Fortin - Blacksmith



Peshtigo District - Ranger Station

W. W. Intermill - Ranger

Carl Arbogast, Junior Forester - ECW Assistant
George A. Weidner - Junior Clerk

Henry J. Larguin -~ Warehouseman

Carl P. Olson - Mechanic

Robert L. White - Squad Foreman

Rachael Schmitt - ERA Sr. Clerk

Blackwell Camp, F-34

Edmund F. Rasmussen - Chief Foreman, Superintendent
Theo W. Agnew, Junior Forester

Claude O. Morin, Junior Forester

Edwin R. Warner, Junior Forester

Norman A. Dittmar - Foreman

John F. Hammes -~ Junior Foreman

Wildred 0. Bolongia - Squad Foreman

Virgil Licklitor - Mechanic

Emil G. Olson - Mechanic

Kenneth G. Sedgwick - Chief Foreman, Superintendent
Mauric W. Day, Junior Forester

Perry O. Donaldson, Jr., Junior Forester

Paul H. Lane, Junior Forester

Otto W. Koch - Junior Foreman

Edward A. Mueller - Junior Foreman

Clyde C. Emden - Mechanic

Himley Lake Camp, F-45

Elbridge E. Ball - Chief Foreman, Superintendent
Harold G. Powell, Junior Forester

James Jorgenson - Junior Foreman

John M. McCullough - Junior Foreman

Ray Schroder - Squad Foreman

George W. Zimmerman - Mechanic

Phelps District - Ranger Station

Walter Nicewander - Ranger

Rudolph Benson, Junior Forester

Fred A. Woleben - Jr. Landscape Architect
Harry E. Krueger - Jr. Stenographer
George H. Erwin - Supplyman

Neleta J. Pearson - ERA Sr. Clerk
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Alvin Camp, F~27

Otto Hackbarth - Chief Foreman, Superintendent
Kenneth H. Juringius, Junior Forester

Oscar P. Stabe, Junior Forester

Thomas W. Hanson - Junior Foreman

Clarence J. Priegel ~ Junior Foreman

Theodore J. Aarstad - Machine Operator

Phelps Camp, F-26

Harry J. Welch - Chief Foreman, Superintendent
Edward J. Smithburg, Junior Forester

Edward W. Smith, Junior Forester

Ralph Morris - Assistant to Technician

Kennell M. Elliott - Junior Foreman

Herman C. Korth ~ Carpenter

Nine Mile Camp, F-2

Raymond L. Leigh - Chief Foreman, Superintendent
Charles H. Diebold, Junior Forester

Dmitri K. Maisserow, Junior Forester

Edmund H. Schroeder - Foreman

Kenneth L. Keach - Junior Foreman

Mark J. Synnott - Junior Foreman

Herman E. Erlitz - Mechanic

Arthur L. Ketz - Mechanic

Lloyd Punches - Machine Operator

Imogene Transient Camp

Donald Kelsey - Chief Foreman, Superintendent
Angus R. Mayo - Foreman C&M

John G. Jaaska - Junior Foreman

Julius Pfeiffer - Foreman

Basil W. Prather - Mechanic

Oliver Clarence Jensen - Carpenter

Custodians

Section Eleven Camp - Patrick J. Sullivan
Trump Lake Camp - Herbert J. Strong

Lily Pad Camp - Frederick Mackmiller
Thunder River Camp - Clifford Elkey

Wolf River Camp - Christ E. Meyer

Bear Paw Camp - .Helmer Olson



Year

1934
1935
1940
1945
1950
1955
1960
1965
1970
1975

Number of

RESOURCE STATISTICS

NET ACREAGE OF NICOLET

1930
1933
1935
1940
1945
1950
1955
1960
1965
1970
1974
1976

0

219,428
348,905
554,247
601,903
627,693
638,218
640, 409
641,906
649,679
651,721
652,721

NICOLET FIRE STATISTICS

Fires

25
53
32
38
23
21
15
11
33
29

Acres Burned

504.3 (earliest year of record)
107.9
229.0
622.6
43.9
14.4
30.5
42.0
228.0
72.0

Large acreages were burned in 1933 and 1934 by such fires as Hiles and Nelma
fires, plus others.

Year

1961
1964
1966
1970
1975

*One Visitor Day = 12 hours of use.

RECREATION VISITS ON NICOLET NATIONAL FOREST

Number of

Visits

300,000
409, 200
868,000
1,270,400
1,275,200

(earliest record)

*VDU
*VDU
*VDU



TIMBER SOLD

Year Volume Value

1930 N/A N/A

1935 1,174 MBF $862.00
1940 10,353 MBF $ 39,729.21
1945 9,618 MBF $ 57,355.00
1950 28,481.72 MBF $188,276.40
1955 23,392.00 MBF $123,979.73
1960 38,187.33 MBF $327,145.00
1965 48,767.19 MBF $381,938.00
1970 52,490.52 MBF $540,718.69
1975 51,545.12 MBF $764,366.37

AMOUNT OF 25% FUND RETURNED TO COUNTIES

Year Amount Paid
1931 $ 1.56 (First year return)
1962 $ 58,511.31
1965 $ 78,493.55
1970 $ 91,866.62
1975 $111,880.02

Distribution to counties within Nicolet National Forest in FY 1975 was as
follows:

Florence $ 14,168.66
Forest $ 58,356.85
Langlade $ 5,520.17
Oconto $ 23,797.39
Oneida $ 1,901.06
Vilas $ 8,135.09

Total $111,880.27
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me to help him locate them. By using aerial photos, we laid out his main
logging road. We found good access to the springs of Johnson Creek (now

named Alvin Creek) and good brook trout fishing. Also, the area was good
deer habitat, and my brothers and I hunted there a lot with good success.
The road was later improved and extended through Section 21 to the south

and out to Forest Road #2174. The Elliott Road is now Forest Road #2175,
and only about two and one-half miles in length.

The U.S. Forest Service treated me well, and I am pleased with my success
and career as a forester.

KENNELL M. ELLIOTT

FEUS GOVERNMENT PRINTING UF FICE 1977 731083
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